
PLACE AND ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date: Monday, 7th September, 2020

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Remote



2

PLACE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 

Information for Members of the Public

Due to the current Covid-19 pandemic Worcester City Council will be holding this meeting in 
accordance with the relevant legislative arrangements for remote meetings of a local authority. For 
more information please refer to: Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020.

Please note that this is a public meeting, conducting remotely by videoconferencing between invited 
participants and live streamed for general access by audio via the Council’s website.

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public. You are able to listen to a live audio stream 
of the meeting via the City Council website www.worcester.gov.uk/councillors-democracy. You have 
the right to inspect electronic copies of Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as 
background documents used in the preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers 
appear at the foot of each report. An explanation to the Planning Committee decisions are given at the 
end of Part 1 of the Agenda. Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt 
Information' for which it is anticipated that the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither 
reports nor background papers are open to public inspection.

Members of the public and press are permitted to report on the proceedings. "Reporting" in the context 
of this remote meeting includes making an audio recording of the live streamed audio and providing 
commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the proceedings, 
including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings.

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 
for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 
Agenda. Members of the public will be allowed to address the Committee in respect of applications to 
be considered by the Committee. Participation in remote meetings will extend to video and/or audio 
participation or written submission read aloud at the appropriate point in the meeting by the Chairman. 
Participants need to indicate that they wish to take part in a remote meeting by 4.30 p.m. on the last 
working day before the meeting by telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. A Democratic 
Services Officer will then contact to advise how to participate in the remote meeting, by invitation. 
Requests to participate received later than this cut-off time may not be accommodated.

If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council he/she will be deemed to 
have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to the Council’s website. The 
Chairman of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if in their opinion, 
continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider that continued 
recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision.

If you have any queries about this Agenda, require any details of background papers, or wish to 
discuss the arrangements for public participation please contact Julian Pugh, Democratic Services 
Administrator, Democratic Services, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY  Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct 
line).  E-Mail Address: committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 
minority languages. Please contact the above named officer for further information.



3

Place and Economic Development Sub-Committee
Monday, 7 September 2020

Members of the Sub-Committee:-

Chairman: Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C)
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Adrian Gregson (L)

Councillor Roger Berry (LCo)
Councillor Simon Geraghty (C)
Councillor Joy Squires (L)

Councillor James Stanley (C)
Councillor Louis Stephen (G)

C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative
LD = Liberal Democrat

AGENDA

Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)

1. Appointment of Substitutes To receive details of any Members 
appointed to attend the meeting instead of 
a Member of the Sub-Committee.

2. Declarations of Interest To receive any declarations of interest.

3. Public Participation Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be 
allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of 
the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any matter on the 
Agenda or within the remit of the Sub-
Committee.

4. Minutes 
Page(s): 1 - 6

Of the meeting held on 27th July 2020 to be 
approved and signed.

5. Local Development Scheme 
2020-2023 
Page(s): 7 - 28
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Corin Beames, 

Senior Planning 
Policy Officer
Tel: 0195 722546

1. That the Local Development Scheme 
2020-2023 set out at Appendix 1 is 
approved to come into effect from 1st 
October 2020; and

2. That delegated authority is given to 
the Corporate Director – Place in 
consultation with the Chair and Vice 
Chair of Place and Economic 
Development Sub-Committee to 
make minor amendments to the LDS 
prior to publication. 



4

6. Markets Review 
Ward(s): Cathedral
Contact Officer: Helen Mole, 

Tourism and City 
Centre Manager
Tel: 01905 
722309

Report to follow.

7. Any Other Business Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of 
sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration.



PLACE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

27th July 2020

Present: Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson in the Chair

Officers:        

Councillors Berry, Geraghty, Gregson (Vice-
Chairman), Squires, Stanley and Stephen

Andrew Round, Corporate Director – Place
Nick Kay, Economic Development and 
Regeneration Team Leader
Helen Mole, Tourism and City Centre 
Manager
Mark Radford, Economic Development 
Officer

1 Appointment of Substitutes 

None.

2 Declarations of Interest 

The following declarations of interest were made:

Councillors Geraghty and Mrs L. Hodgson - City Centre Wi-Fi and Footfall Data 
Monitoring (Minute No 9) – as Members of Worcestershire County Council.

3 Public Participation 

None.

4 Minutes 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 27th January 2020 be 
approved as a correct record and signed remotely by the Chairman.

5 Annual and Quarter 4 Performance Report for Place and Economic Sub-
Committee for 2019/20 

The Sub-Committee considered the Annual and Quarter 4 Performance Report for 
the Place and Economic Development Sub-Committee for 2019/20.

It was noted that each committee would usually receive a report regarding their 
Performance Scorecard each quarter. However, due to COVID-19, and the 
subsequent changes to the committee schedules, the Quarter 4 2019/20 reports 
for all committees were initially reported to the Policy and Resources Committee 
on the 26th May 2020.  

The Annual and Quarter 4 performance report for the Place and Economic 
Development Sub-Committee was attached as Appendix 1 to the report.

The Corporate Director – Place presented the report and responded to questions 
from Sub-Committee Members.

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



27th July 2020 2

The Sub-Committee Members were pleased to see that the planning targets were 
on track and improvements had been made.  Thanks were given to colleagues in 
planning for this achievement.

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee notes the Council’s Annual and 
Quarter 4 performance for Place and Economic Development for 2019/20.

6 Proposed Committee Performance Scorecard 2020/21 and Quarter 1 
Performance Report 2020/21 

The Sub-Committee considered the Performance Scorecard for 2020/21 and the 
Quarter 1 Performance Report for 2020/21. 

It was noted that the proposed scorecard for 2020/21 was scheduled to be 
reported to the Sub-Committee in March 2020.  However, the meeting was 
cancelled as was the meeting in June due to Covid-19.  The subsequent changes 
to the committee schedules have resulted in the proposed scorecard being 
presented alongside the Quarter 1 2020/21 Performance Report.

The proposed content of the Planning and Economic Development Sub-Committee 
Performance Scorecard for 2020/21 was attached as Appendix 1 and the Quarter 
1 Performance Report was attached as Appendix 2.

The Corporate Director – Place presented the report and responded to questions 
from Sub-Committee Members on points of clarification.

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee agree the proposed content of the 
performance Scorecard for 2020/21 and note the Council’s Quarter 1 
performance for Place and Economic Development 2020/21.

7 Tourism Economic Impact Assessment 

The Sub-Committee considered a report on the Tourism Economic Impact 
Assessment.

The Tourism and City Centre Manager presented the report and informed the Sub-
Committee that the Council had commissioned an economic impact assessment of 
tourism in Worcester from consultants in 2019.  The 2019 data will be available in 
Summer 2020 and a follow-up report will be commissioned at that time.

The previous economic impact assessment used 2015 data therefore the latest 
report allows for a comparison period before the launch of the Tourism Strategy in 
2017 and the insourcing of the tourism service for the City in 2018.

The Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to the headline figures outlined in 
paragraphs 3.1-3.6 of the report, particularly 3.1 and 3.2.

The current tourism strategy is due for review in 2021.  This report will be used to 
informed this process, including the development of new projects and campaigns 
to promote the City.  

The Tourism and City Centre Manager responded to questions from Sub-
Committee Members.

Page 2



27th July 2020 3

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee note the findings of the Tourism 
Economic Impact Assessment for 2018 (report released January 2020).

8 Economic Recovery Strategy 

The Sub-Committee considered the Economic Recovery Strategy report.

The government’s announcement of lockdown measures on 23rd March 2020 had 
an immediate effect on the city’s businesses, particularly as it occurred so soon 
after the serious flood event of February/March.  Footfall in the city centre 
dropped by 90% and almost all businesses were forced to close.  The Council’s 
immediate priorities were to ensure the safe continuation of as many services as 
possible as well as ensuring that government grants and support could be 
delivered to the businesses and people most in need.

The Tourism and City Centre Manager presented the report and informed the Sub-
Committee Members that working in partnership with the County Council, all local 
authorities have focused on key themes for recovery, these were outlined in 
paragraph 2.3 of the report.  The City Council’s role and engagement with each 
theme has varied depending on its level of influence and responsibility.

On 25th May 2020 the government issued details of the Reopening High Streets 
Safely Fund with an allocation of £90,121 for Worcester City.  When combined 
with existing resources, this funding will be used to support economic recovery for 
the city.

The Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to paragraphs 3.1-3.1.9 which outlined 
the examples of projects delivered so far.  Paragraph 4.1-3 referred to potential 
projects and a request to reassign funding.

The Tourism and City Centre Manager responded to questions from Sub-
Committee Members

The Sub-Committee Members thanked the Tourism and City Centre Manager for a 
comprehensive report.

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee:

1. note the report on activity to support the economic recovery of the 
city; and

2. approve the reallocation of existing budgets to fund recovery 
projects.

9 City Centre Wi-Fi and Footfall Data Monitoring 

The Sub-Committee considered a report on City Centre Wi-Fi and footfall data 
monitoring.

The Economic Development Officer in presenting the report stated that following 
an earlier procurement process, which was visited following a desire to increase 
the area of coverage of the City Centre of the Wi-Fi service, a subsequent bid has 
been received from ’In Technology Wi-Fi’ which will deliver free, unlimited, public 

Page 3



27th July 2020 4

Wi-Fi in Worcester City Centre with possible future phases to extend the network 
into other areas at the earliest opportunity.

The Sub-Committee Members were informed that there was a small capital cost to 
the City Council of £10,000 for electrical works required in setting up the Wi-Fi 
network, otherwise there were no capital costs associated with delivering the 
infrastructure as this cost will be borne by the contractor.  The annual projected 
income to be received was highlighted in paragraph 2.4 of the report.

The proposed network coverage in Worcester City Centre was shown in Appendix 
B attached to the report.  The contract award is for a 5 year period which is 
monetised through creating a community smartphone app which drives revenue 
from sponsorship and advertising and underpins the business model.

The contract award will also deliver comprehensive footfall monitoring through the 
network infrastructure.  This information does have associated costs but they 
would be offset in part by revenue received under the contract as outlined in 
paragraph 5.1 of the report.  The various data classed and full range of data areas 
was outlined in paragraph 2.12 of the report.  Confidential Appendix A provided 
further information.

The Economic Development Officer stated that it was recommended that a 
concession contract be awarded to In Technology Wi-Fi for a 5 year period, with 
an option for future extension as outlined in the preferred option at paragraph 3 
of the report.  The alternative options considered at paragraph 4 were highlighted.

The Corporate Director – Place and the Economic Development Officer responded 
to questions from Sub-Committee Members who welcomed the proposal.

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee awards a concession contract to 
‘InTechnology Wi-Fi’ for a period of 5 years, with an option for future 
extension, to develop and deliver city centre Wi-Fi in Worcester to include 
the provision of footfall data and a tourism app.

10 Any Other Business 

None.

11 Item Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information 

RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of information as defined in Schedule 12A of the said Act.

12 City Centre Wi-Fi and Footfall Data Monitoring 

That the Sub-Committee note Confidential Appendix A of the report.

Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. to 8.20p.m.

Page 4



27th July 2020 5

Chairman at the meeting on
7th September 2020

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Place and Economic Development Sub-Committee, 7th September 2020

Report of: Corporate Director - Place

Subject: LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME 2020-2023

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Local Development Scheme 2020-2023 set out at Appendix 1 is 
approved to come into effect from 1st October 2020.

1.2 That delegated authority is given to the Corporate Director – Place in 
consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of Place and Economic 
Development Sub-Committee to make minor amendments to the LDS prior 
to publication. 

2. Background

2.1 Section 15 of The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as amended, sets 
out the requirement for Local Planning Authorities to prepare and maintain a scheme 
of planning policy documents that it intends to produce. The Local Development 
Scheme (LDS) has two main purposes:

 To inform the public about the preparation and adoption of planning 
documents; and

 To establish and reflect council priorities and enable work programmes to be 
set for the preparation of the documents.

2.2 The most recent LDSs for the SWCs were adopted in November 2019.  The National 
Planning Practice Guidance states that Local Development Schemes should be 
updated at least annually.  The September 2020 LDSs will cover the period 2020-
2023.  It is important that the LDS is updated regularly as when Development Plan 
Documents (DPDs) are examined one of the tests to be passed is whether the DPD 
has been prepared in accordance with the timetable in the LDS.  

2.3 The revised LDS includes four main changes:

 Updates to the timetable of the South Worcestershire Development Plan Review 
(SWDPR) work programme. 

 Updates to the timetable of the Travellers and Travelling Showpeople Site 
Allocations Development Plan Document (DPD).

 Updates to the positions of Neighbourhood Plans and Minerals and Waste 
Planning. 

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



 Updates to the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) to allow for 
temporary measures to be applied relating to consultation methods as a result 
of the Covid-19 Pandemic and requirement for social distancing.  

SWDP Review

2.4 Members may recall that the ‘Preferred Options’ consultation of the SWDP review 
was carried out in late 2019. Since the completion of this consultation, work has 
been progressing on the ‘Submission’ version of the SWDP. However, the review of 
the SWDP has been delayed due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. The 
intention was for the SWDP review to be ready for examination in early 2021, but 
lockdown restrictions have made it impossible to complete a number of technical 
assessments and evidence gathering needed to support the plan. Further, in 
updating the evidence base, advice from Counsel has recommended that an 
additional round of consultation is factored into the SWDP timetable prior to 
submission of the plan for examination to allow for the opportunity for those who 
wish to comment on the revised version of the plan to make representations. To 
allow for this to happen, the SWDP timetable has been updated and now proposes 
submission of the SWDP for examination in March 2022, with adoption in April 2023 
(subject to the examination timescale).   

2.5 The updates to the plan production timescale will result in the SWDP being more 
than five years old at the point it is submitted for examination. However, submission 
of the plan for examination is considered to be a good demonstration of progress in 
undertaking a review of the plan. Further, the South Worcestershire Councils 
continue to be in a strong position regarding their five-year housing land supply. 

2.6 It should be noted that the Government has recently published (August 2020) a 
number of consultations relating to the planning system. At the forefront is the 
‘Planning for the Future’ White Paper, which sets out the government’s proposals for 
reforming the planning system. Coupled with this, a technical consultation titled 
‘Changes to the current planning system’ proposes a number of changes to planning 
policy and regulations.   A briefing session to discuss the proposed changes and their 
implications will be held for all Members prior to the City Council’s response being 
approved by PED Committee and submitted to MHCLG on the 29th October 2020.  

2.7 It is difficult to predict when the various parts of the white paper will be enacted and 
what form they will take after the Government has reviewed the responses to the 
consultation.  However, it is clear that the Government is committed to their target 
of building 300,000 new homes every year.  Therefore, it is likely that some of the 
proposed changes could be enacted sooner than others, in particular the new 
standard methodology for calculating housing requirements.  If this happens there 
may be implications for the review of the SWDP and consequently the timetable.  
You will see from the proposed revised timetable that a third regulation 18 
consultation (further preferred options) will be undertaken as early as March 2021 
with a view to the revised SWDP being published later in the year.  Therefore, the 
timetable reflects the need to ensure that we give ourselves the best chance of 
publishing and submitting the revised SWDP to the Secretary of State under the 
current planning system.

Page 8



Travellers and Travelling Showpeople Development Plan Document (DPD)

2.8 Members may recall that the 2019 LDS included a revised timetable for the 
Travellers and Travelling Showpeople DPD which delayed further work on the 
document until the evidence base for the SWDP Review was established and delayed 
the adoption of the document until after the SWDP review.  The 2020 LDS sets out 
all of the stages of the Traveller and Travelling Showpeople DPD process which are 
to be carried out, culminating in adoption of the DPD in July 2022. 

LDS Review Process

2.9 It is best practice to update the LDS annually to extend the work programme for a 
12-month period and ensure a rolling three-year work programme is maintained.  
The LDS revision therefore sets out key milestones up until December 2023.  

2.10 There is no longer a requirement to include Supplementary Planning Documents 
(SPDs) within the LDS. However, the 2017 LDS included two SPDs which have not 
been progressed – the ‘Archaeology and the Historic Environment’ SPD and the 
‘Biodiversity’ SPD.  These were removed from the LDS in 2018, however the City 
Council or the South Worcestershire Councils can still prepare SPDs to provide more 
detail on policies in the SWDP if required and if resources allow.  

3. Preferred Option 

3.1 The preferred option is to approve the LDS set out at Appendix 1 to this report to 
come into effect from 1st October 2020. 

4. Alternative Options Considered

4.1 The alternative option is to continue to work to the current LDS and not approve a 
revised version at this time.  However, the NPPG requires authorities to update their 
LDS at least annually and it has always been considered best practice to do so.  
There is also a requirement to prepare DPDs in accordance with an up-to-date LDS, 
and therefore not keeping the LDS up-to-date could have negative consequences for 
the examination of the SWDP Review.  

5. Implications

5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications
There are financial implications associated with preparing the documents set out 
within the LDS, most notably the review of SWDP.  Continuing to work jointly across 
south Worcestershire enables costs to be shared.  The biggest cost is staff resources 
but in addition to this, costs will be incurred in updating the evidence base to support 
a plan review.  However, the principle of reviewing the SWDP has already been 
agreed; the current iteration of the LDS provides clarity in relation to the anticipated 
timetable through to adoption of the SWDP Review.  

5.2 Legal and Governance Implications
The preparation of the LDS is a statutory requirement under The Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as amended.  

5.3 Risk Implications

Page 9



Not maintaining an up-to-date Local Plan could result in planning by appeal once the 
SWDP is five years old.  Not maintaining an up-to-date LDS could have negative 
consequences for the examination of the SWDP. 

5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications
The LDS itself does not establish policy, however it provides a clear project plan for 
the preparation of the City Council’s planning policy documents.

5.5 Equality Implications
An Equality Impact Assessment is not required for the production of the LDS as it is 
simply the project plan for preparing planning documents and does not in itself 
contain any policies. Local Development Documents are themselves subject to 
Equality Impact Assessment at the appropriate plan making stages.

5.6 Human Resources Implications
None

5.7 Health and Safety Implications
None

Ward(s): All
Contact Officer: Corin Beames – Tel: 01905 722546, E-mail: 

corin.beames@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers: None 

Page 10



Worcester City Council
Local Development Scheme (LDS)

2020-2023

September 2020
Update 

Produced jointly with the
South Worcestershire Councils

Planning Policy
Economic Development and Planning Policy

The Guildhall
Worcester
WR1 2EY

Page 11 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Contents
Page

1. What is the Local Development Scheme? 1

2. Progress to date 3

3. Development Plan Documents 5

a. South Worcestershire Development Plan 6
b. Travellers and Travelling Showpeople Site Allocations 

Development Plan Document
7

4. Other important policy documents 8

a. Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule 9
b. Statement of Community Involvement 10

5. Supplementary Planning Documents 11

Worcester City Planning Policy Framework Diagram     12

6. Resources 13

7. Risk Assessment 14

8. Monitoring and review 16

Appendices

A - South Worcestershire Local Development Scheme - 
Project Plan/Gantt Chart 2020-2023

17

Page 12



1

1. What is the Local Development Scheme?

1.1 The Local Development Scheme (LDS) is a project management document 
which sets out the Council’s priorities for preparing planning policy 
documents over the next three years.  It is a requirement of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) that each Local 
Planning Authority should produce an LDS, which must include any 
Development Plan Documents it intends to prepare and a timetable 
indicating the main milestones of production. The 2004 Act also sets out a 
number of other requirements to be included in the LDS.

1.2 Since October 2010, Worcester City Council has been working with 
Malvern Hills District Council and Wychavon District Council to produce the 
joint South Worcestershire Development Plan (SWDP), which was adopted 
in February 2016.  Joint working on this strategic document has brought 
together many other work streams and has also created the need for 
further joint working in the future.  The three South Worcestershire 
Councils (SWCs) are therefore continuing to combine resources on many 
planning policy matters, and have worked collaboratively to prepare the 
shared elements of this LDS.

1.3 Paragraph 33 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states 
that policies in local plans and spatial development strategies should be 
reviewed to assess whether they need updating at least once every five 
years, and should then be updated as necessary.1 Reviews should be 
completed no later than five years from the adoption date of a plan, and 
should take into account changing circumstances affecting the area, or 
any relevant changes in national policy.

1.4 Accordingly, the south Worcestershire councils commenced a review of the 
SWDP in late 2017. Whilst good progress on the review has been made, 
the production of the SWDP has been substantially impacted by the Covid-
19 pandemic. The intention of this LDS update therefore is:

 to set out the updated timetable for the SWDP Review;
 to report on the progress made since the publication of the current 

LDS; and
 to set out the updated timetable for the Travellers and Travelling 

Showpeople Site Allocations Development Plan Document. 

1.5 The LDS can be viewed online on the Planning Policy pages of the 
Worcester City Council website here. 

1.6
Hard copies are also normally available to view at The Hive, and Warndon 
and St John’s libraries during their normal opening hours. However, due 
to Covid-19 related limitations, the LDS is currently only available online.   

If you have any questions about the LDS or how to access it, please 
contact us by:

1 Reviews at least every five years are a legal requirement for all local plans (Regulation 10A of the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012).

Page 13

https://www.worcester.gov.uk/planning/planning-policy/local-development-


2

Email: planning@worcester.gov.uk

Tel: 01905 722233 and ask for the Planning Policy team

Page 14

mailto:planning@worcester.gov.uk


3

2. Progress to date

Progress since publication of the October 2019 Local Development 
Scheme

South Worcestershire Development Plan (SWDP)

2.1 The SWDP was adopted in February 2016. A review of the SWDP 
commenced in late 2017 to ensure that the south Worcestershire councils 
continue to have an up-to-date Local Plan.  An ‘Issues and Options’ 
consultation was undertaken during November and December 2018.   

2.2 This was followed by a ‘Preferred Options’ consultation in November and 
December 2019. Good progress was made working towards the 
‘Publication’ version of the SWDP Review before being impacted by the 
Covid-19 Pandemic.

Proposed Changes to the Planning System

2.3 It should be noted that the Government has recently published (August 
2020) a number of consultations relating to the planning system. At the 
forefront is the ‘Planning for the Future’ White Paper, which sets out the 
government’s proposals for reforming the planning system. Coupled with 
this, a technical consultation titled ‘Changes to the current planning 
system’ proposes a number of changes to planning policy and regulations.  

2.4 It is difficult to predict when the various parts of the white paper will be 
enacted and what form they will take after the Government has reviewed 
the responses to the consultation.  However, it is clear that the 
Government is committed to their target of building 300,000 new homes 
every year.  Therefore, it is likely that some of the proposed changes 
could be enacted sooner than others, in particular the new standard 
methodology for calculating housing requirements.  If this happens there 
may be implications for the review of the SWDP and consequently the 
timetable.

2.5 Therefore, the timetable reflects our aim to submit the revised SWDP to 
the SoS under the current planning system.

Minerals and Waste Planning

2.6 This is carried out by Worcestershire County Council (WCC). The 
Worcestershire Waste Core Strategy Development Plan Document was 
adopted November 2012. 

2.7 Worcestershire County Council is currently preparing a new Minerals Local 
Plan for Worcestershire. The document will guide how much and what 
minerals the County needs to be able to supply, where minerals should be 
extracted and how sites should be "restored" when minerals working has 
finished. 

Page 15



4

Once adopted, the Minerals Local Plan will be used to make decisions 
about planning applications for mineral extraction, processing and 
restoration in the County.

2.8 In January 2018 the County Council undertook a further “call for minerals 
sites”. The fourth stage consultation took place from 17th December 2018 
until 15th February 2019. The publication / pre submission consultation on 
the plan commenced on 19th August 2019 and closed on 30th September 
2019. 

2.9 The Publication Version of the Minerals Local Plan was submitted to the 
Secretary of State for Housing, Community and Local Government on 17 
December 2019 for independent examination. Local Plan Hearings for the 
Worcestershire Minerals Local Plan were due to take place on 5-7 May 
2020 and then on 2-4 June 2020 if required. Due to the Coronavirus 
Pandemic, these hearing sessions have been postponed.  

2.10 A separate Minerals and Waste Local Development Scheme has been 
produced by Worcestershire County Council and is available on its website 
(www.worcestershire.gov.uk/lds). 

Neighbourhood Plans

2.11 At the time of reviewing the Local Development Scheme, the following 
status applied across the South Worcestershire area (data correct 
31/07/2020):

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs)

2.12 No SPDs have been progressed since the October 2019 LDS was 
published. 

Existing Development Plan for Worcester City

2.13 The Council’s existing Development Plan currently comprises of:

 The South Worcestershire Development Plan (SWDP)
 The Worcestershire Waste Core Strategy Development Plan Document 

(adopted 2012)
 Saved Policies from the Hereford and Worcester Minerals Local Plan 

(adopted 1997)

Council Neighbourhood 
Areas 

Designated

Neighbourhood 
Plans which have 

been through 
Pre-submission 

consultation

Submitted 
Neighbourhood 

Plans 

Adopted 
Neighbourhood 

Plans

Malvern Hills 17 3 0 6
Worcester City 1 0 0 0
Wychavon 21 0 2 8

Page 16

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11410/minerals_local_plan_publication_version.pdf
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/lds


5

These are the documents which provide the planning policies that planning 
applications should be determined against (unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise) at the time of reviewing this LDS.

Existing local planning policy framework

2.14 The wider planning policy framework for Worcester City consists of the 
following Supplementary Planning Documents:

 Houses in Multiple Occupation – October 2014
 Affordable Housing – October 2016
 Planning for Health – September 2017
 Design Guide - March 2018
 Revised Developer Contributions – July 2018
 Water Management and Flooding – July 2018
 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy – July 2018

3. Development Plan Documents

3.1 At Worcester City Council, the Development Plan Documents to be 
produced over the next three years are:
 The South Worcestershire Development Plan Review (Jointly with 

Malvern Hills and Wychavon District Councils)
 The Travellers and Travelling Showpeople Site Allocations DPD (Jointly 

with Malvern Hills and Wychavon District Councils)

3.2 The following section sets out the content of, and timetable for, producing 
the above documents. All references to Regulations in this section refer to 
The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 
2012.

3a South Worcestershire Development Plan Review

Overview
Role and 
content

The plan will update the existing SWDP, reviewing the 
development requirements, policies and site allocations and 
extending the Plan period to 2041.   

Status Development Plan Document
Geographical 
coverage

The plan covers the administrative areas of Worcester City, 
Wychavon and Malvern Hills.

Jointly produced YES.
The SWDP was jointly produced by Worcester City Council, 
Wychavon District Council and Malvern Hills District Council 
collectively known as the south Worcestershire councils.

Chain of 
conformity

National Planning Policy Framework, the National Planning 
Practice Guidance, Planning policy for Traveller sites, case 
law and planning legislation.

Milestones (Completed Stages are shown in BLUE)
Evidence 
Gathering 

Commenced in late 2017

Page 17

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/pdfs/uksi_20120767_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/pdfs/uksi_20120767_en.pdf


6

Issues and 
Options 
(Regulation 18 (i))

November/December 2018

Preferred Options
(Regulation 18 (ii))

November/December 2019

Further Preferred 
Options 
Consultation 
(Regulation 18 (iii))

March 2021

Publication
(Regulation 19)

October/November 2021

Submission
(Regulation 22)

February/March 2022

Independent 
Examination
(Regulation 24)

May 2022 to January 2023 

Receipt of 
Inspector’s 
Report
(Regulation 25)

March 2023

Adoption
(Regulation 26)

April 2023 

3b. Travellers and Travelling Showpeople Site 
Allocations DPD

Overview
Role and 
content

The Travellers and Travelling Showpeople Site Allocations 
DPD will set out the updated requirement for the number of 
sites and pitches to be provided to meet the needs of 
Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople in the area 
over the coming years.  It will then allocate sites or 
extensions to existing sites to meet this requirement

Status Development Plan Document
Geographical 
coverage

The plan covers the administrative areas of Worcester City, 
Wychavon and Malvern Hills.

Jointly produced YES.
The Travellers and Travelling Showpeople Site Allocations 
DPD is being jointly produced by Worcester City Council, 
Wychavon District Council and Malvern Hills District Council 
collectively known as the south Worcestershire councils.

Chain of 
conformity

Planning policy for traveller sites, case law and planning 
legislation.

Timetable (Completed Stages are shown in BLUE)
Commencement September 2014

Preferred 
Options
(Regulation 18)

May/June 2016
February/March 2018

Page 18



7

March/April 2021

Publication
(Regulation 19)

Sept/October 2021

Submission
(Regulation 22)

April 2022

Independent 
Examination
(Regulation 24)

May to June 2022

Receipt of 
Inspector’s 
Report
(Regulation 25)

June 2022

Adoption
(Regulation 26)

July 2022

4. Other important policy documents

4.1 These documents are not part of the Development Plan, but it is important 
to set out the likely content and timetable so that interested parties are 
made aware at the earliest opportunity of forthcoming consultations. 
These documents are:

 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
 Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)

4.2 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was adopted in May 2017 and 
CIL charging commenced in Worcester City on 4th September 2017.   
There are no immediate plans to review the CIL charging schedule, 
however, national changes to CIL regulations and any transitional 
arrangements will need to be routinely monitored and taken into 
consideration.  

4.3 The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) was adopted in February 
2018.  The Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017 introduced new 
requirements for the SCI and as such it is now a requirement to review 
the SCI every 5 years.  The next review of the SCI is therefore due to take 
place in February 2023. 

4.4 Recent updates to the ‘Plan Making’ section of the National Planning Policy 
Guidance (NPPG) in May and July 2020 recommend that Local Authorities 
consider reviewing their SCI where policies within it cannot be complied 
with due to coronavirus so that plan-making can continue. Parts of the SCI 
will therefore be updated on a temporary basis whilst social distancing 
measures relating to coronavirus remain in effect. The SCI will revert back 
to the latest adopted version once measures have been lifted.

4.5 There are no longer any regulations governing the production stages of 
the SCI, but the requirement to prepare one is set out in Section 18 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended). 

Page 19

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/pdfs/ukpga_20040005_en.pdf


8

Page 20



9

4a. Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

Overview
Role and 
content

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) sets out a 
charging schedule of tariffs to be applied to qualifying 
development in Worcester City. This will allow funding to be 
secured for infrastructure that is needed as a result of 
development in the area.  The tariff is applied per m2 of net 
additional floorspace.  The rate of the tariff has been 
determined by examining the ability of development to bear 
the charge without unduly affecting a development’s 
viability.

Status Non-Development Plan Document
Geographical 
coverage

The Community Infrastructure Levy covers the Worcester 
City Council administrative area.  

Jointly produced YES.
The Charging Schedule and supporting evidence were 
prepared on a joint basis and each of the three councils has 
individually adopted CIL.  In Worcester City CIL charging 
commenced on 4th September 2017.  

Chain of 
conformity

South Worcestershire Development Plan, Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations, the National Planning Policy 
Framework, the National Planning Practice Guidance, Part 
11 of the 2008 Planning Act and Part 6 of the Localism Act 
2011. 

Timetable (Completed Stages are shown in BLUE)
Commencement May 2012
Consultation on 
Preliminary Draft 
Charging Schedule 
(PDCS) (Regulation 15)

PDCS – prior to housing numbers uplift:
September – October 2013
PDCS – Revised to take account of housing 
numbers uplift: January – February 2015

Publication of Draft 
Charging Schedule
(Regulation 16)

April 2016

Submission 
(Regulation 19)

July 2016

Independent 
Examination

August 2016 
Hearing sessions – November 2016

Receipt of Examiner’s 
Report (Regulation 23)

 January 2017

Adoption
(Regulation 25)

May 2017

Levy takes effect
(Regulation 28)

4th September 2017

Page 21



10

4b. Statement of Community Involvement (Temporary 
Amendments)

Overview
Role and 
content

Worcester City Council’s latest Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) was adopted in February 2018.   It sets 
out how the Council will consult on planning matters 
including the preparation of planning policy and the 
determination of planning applications. The Neighbourhood 
Planning Act included provisions relating to SCIs and as 
such it is now appropriate to review the document to meet 
the new requirements. Parts of the SCI will also be updated 
on a temporary basis whilst social distancing measures 
relating to coronavirus remain in effect. The SCI will revert 
back to the latest adopted version once measures have 
been lifted. 

Status Non-Development Plan Document – Local Development 
Document

Geographical 
coverage

The SCI covers the Worcester City Council administrative 
area.  It is consistent with those of Wychavon and Malvern 
Hills.

Jointly produced The SCI is not a joint document however it has been 
produced in collaboration with Wychavon District Council 
and Malvern Hills District Council. 

Chain of 
conformity

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended), 
Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017 National Planning Policy 
Framework and case law.

Timetable for Review (Completed Stages are shown in BLUE)
Commencement August 2020

Consultation  Not Applicable (temporary changes)

Adoption (on a 
temporary 
basis)

 September 2020

5. Supplementary Planning Documents

5.1 A number of Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) have been 
prepared to provide further guidance on the policies within SWDP.  These 
documents are not part of the Development Plan. It is no longer a 
requirement to detail SPDs and their timetables for preparation within an 
LDS. However, the list of SPDs in the wider planning policy framework for 
Worcester City can be viewed on the diagram below and in section 2.11 of 
this report.  

Page 22



11

Worcester Planning Policy Framework Diagram

Key

Development Plan Documents

Process Documents

Supplementary Planning Documents 
(JOINT)

Supplementary Planning Documents 
(Worcester City)

South Worcestershire Development Plan
(SWDP)

Travellers and 
Travelling Showpeople 
Site Allocations DPD

CIL Charging Schedule

Neighbourhood Plans

Worcester City Council Planning Policy Framework

Authority Monitoring Report

Local Development Scheme

Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI)

SPDs

Developer Contributions SPD

Affordable Housing SPD

Houses in Multiple Occupation SPD

Design Guide SPD

Water Management and Sustainable Drainage Systems SPD

Health SPD

Renewable and Low Carbon Energy SPD

P
age 23



12

6. Resources

6.1 The work to deliver the planning policy documents within the LDS will be 
dependent on continued joint working between the three South 
Worcestershire Councils as this has proven to be a more efficient and 
effective way of working. The work will be undertaken using existing 
resources and within existing governance structures in each of the three 
districts.

7. Risk Assessment

7.1 The Council recognises that there are risks in delivering the documents set 
out in the LDS. Some of these risks are within the Council’s control and 
some are not. Table 1 identifies the main areas of risk, their impact and 
the ways to overcome them so that the programme in the LDS can be 
delivered.

Table 1: Risk Assessment

Area of risk Likelihood/Impact and 
Consequence

Mitigation

Adequate staff resources  Unable to complete 
documents on time and 
to the required 
standard

 Consequential 
programme slippage

 At the extreme – DPDs 
and SPDs may be 
withdrawn e.g. if found 
unsound or subject to 
successful legal 
challenge

 Consequential 
increased risk of 
inappropriate, 
speculative planning 
applications if there is 
no up-to-date Local 
Plan

 Joint working with SW 
Councils and County Council

 Ring fence policy teams 
dedicated to plan production

 Employ temporary 
staff/consultants (subject to 
resource availability)

Funding pressure on 
resources

 Loss of resources to 
fund plan making, 
resulting in programme 
slippage

 Consequential 
increased risk of 
inappropriate 
speculative planning 
applications if there is 
no up to date Local 
Plan

 Protocols agreed by the SW 
Councils for budgets and 
shared costs

 Provision of schemes to 
influence budgetary 
decisions

 Monitoring of costs and 
budget spend/profiles

Council procedures and 
Corporate commitments

 Risk of programme 
slippage

 Leader’s meetings to 
coordinate strategy

Page 24



13

Area of risk Likelihood/Impact and 
Consequence

Mitigation

 Consequential 
increased risk of 
inappropriate, 
speculative planning 
applications if there is 
no up to date Local 
Plan

 Risk to the Council’s 
reputation

 Robust programme 
management 

 Joint Advisory Panel to 
advise Councils on plan 
production

 Joint Officer Steering Group 
to oversee plan production 
process

 Joint Officer Team to 
manage plan production 
process

 Awareness of consultations 
and Council diaries

Neighbourhood planning  Insufficient staff 
resource available to 
meet legal 
requirements in the 
provision of technical 
advice and support to 
Town and Parish 
Councils

 Insufficient funding to 
resource LPA support

 Diversion of staff 
resources from 
preparation of DPDs 
and SPDs

 Maintain contact with Town 
and Parish Councils to 
ascertain scale and type of 
work required from the LPAs

 Assess the extent to which 
neighbourhood plans deliver 
the LDS

 Assessment of 
neighbourhood plans to 
influence budgetary 
decisions

 Seek Government funding 
for resources

Changes to external 
context

 Unable to meet 
requirements of 
national policy and 
guidance

 Insufficient flexibility 
and resilience to meet 
economic / 
environmental / social 
changes

 Monitor policy 
announcements and 
consultations 

 Assess Local Plan/SPD 
consistency with policy

 Use of latest guidance
 Monitor future trends, use of 

Foresight intelligence

Time required for 
consideration, 
consultation and decision 
making

 Insufficient time to 
meet standard lead in 
times to decision 
making

 Significant level of 
responses to 
consultation

 Additional scrutiny 
stage(s)

 Programme slippage

 Coordination of Council 
meeting dates

 Project management
 Awareness of Council diaries 

and constitutions and 
protocols for decision 
making

 Awareness of events such as 
elections and holidays

 Use of delegated decisions 
route

 Efficient/effective handling 
of responses

Capacity of the Planning 
Inspectorate and 
outcomes of their 
recommendations

 PINS unable to meet 
demand for DPD 
examination leading to 
delay in adopting plan

 Provide LDS to PINS as early 
as possible – to identify DPD 
production

 Regular liaison with PINS
 Monitor Inspector’s reports 

and High Court Challenges 

Page 25



14

Area of risk Likelihood/Impact and 
Consequence

Mitigation

and draw up/use lessons 
learnt

Unforeseen 
Circumstances (i.e. 
Covid-19 Pandemic)

 Unable to continue with 
key areas of evidence 
base development.

 Inability to work face to 
face and attend 
meetings.

 Inability to meet 
project timetable 
(programme slippage). 

 Utilise video conferencing for 
meetings.

 Produce evidence in house 
(where possible). 

 Update/review project 
timetable. 

8. Monitoring and Review

Monitoring

8.1 There is a requirement to monitor the implementation of the LDS2 and 
hence progress made in producing Local Plans and SPDs through an 
Authority Monitoring Report (AMR). AMRs must be produced at least 
annually, and must cover a period of no more than 12 months.  AMRs must 
cover a continuous period, with no gap in coverage between reports.

1.1 In relation to each document included within the LDS, monitoring must be 
carried out on:

 the timetable included for that specific document;
 the stage that the document has reached in the production process; 

and
 if the document is behind the timetable set out in the LDS, the 

reasons for this.

1.2 An AMR will be produced jointly across South Worcestershire each year and 
will be made available on the councils’ websites as soon as it has been 
finalised.  The AMR will be reported by the Local Planning Authority to the 
Joint Advisory Panel (or equivalent). As well as progress in plan-making, 
this will be the opportunity to report on the monitoring indicators in 
adopted Local Plans to assess policy performance.  

Review of the LDS

1.3 In response to the yearly monitoring against the LDS, the south 
Worcestershire councils will work together to review the content of their 
LDSs each year to provide real time information of the work programme 
over a rolling three-year period.  Anticipated delays or actual slippage 
against the published timetable will be addressed, with realistic revisions 
to key milestones proposed.  

2 Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. Part 2 – Local Development. S. 35 (as amended)
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 – Regulation 34 Authorities’ Monitoring Reports

Page 26



15

1.4 The Local Planning Authority anticipates that the next full review of the 
LDS will be in 2023.  This is subject to the LPA’s consideration of any 
significant changes for example in legislation, national policy or 
circumstances that impact on plan-making or the delivery of strategy and 
policy.

Page 27



16

Appendix A South Worcestershire Local Development Scheme: Project Plan: 2020-2023 (Revised September 2020)

2020 2021 2022 2023

J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A

Local Development Scheme R R R

Authority Monitoring Report 1 1 2 13 1 1 2 13 1 1 2 13

SWDP Review 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 3 3 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 7 7 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 12 13

Traveller and Travelling 
Showpeople Site Allocations 
DPD

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 5 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 9 9 12 13

Key - DPDs and SPDs
1 Preparatory work including compiling evidence base –including 

early engagement (issues and options) consultation for DPDs
6 Publication of Proposed Submission document for representations

(Regulation 19 For DPDs)
11 Inspector considers consultation responses (May not be required. 

Dependent on outcome of Examination).
2 Preparation of draft document 7 Analysis of representations 12 Receipt of Inspector’s report (Regulation 25 for DPDs)

3 Public Consultation
(Regulation 13 for SPDs), (Regulation 18 for DPDs)

8 Submission to Secretary of State
(Regulation 22 for DPDs)

13 Adoption/Completion/Judicial Review Period
(Regulation 14 for SPDs), (Regulation 26 for DPDs)

4 Consideration of representations 9 Independent Examination (Regulation 24 for DPDs)

5 Preparation of final document (for SPDs)
Preparation of Proposed Submission document (for DPDs)

10 Consultation on Main Modifications (May not be required. 
Dependent on outcome of Examination).

R Review

Regulation references relate to The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012

P
age 28

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/pdfs/uksi_20120767_en.pdf

	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Local Development Scheme 2020-2023
	LDS Review Sept 2020 - Worcester City (SWC Master Copy)


